
Note of meeting between Cabinet Secretary and Chinese CG – 12 June 2024: 
 
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)] 
  
 
From:                                                       [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Sent:                                                         14 June 2024 14:33 
To:                                                            [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Cc:                                                             [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Subject:                                                   RE: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE: Edinburgh MoU 
Attachments:                                         OFF-SEN Meeting Note - Cab Sec and Chinese CG 12 Jun 

2024.docx 
  

OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 

  
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)] 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)]  
  
  
  

OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 

From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 

Sent: Thursday, June 13, 2024 3:57 PM 

To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@fcdo.gov.uk] 

Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@fcdo.gov.uk] 

Subject: RE: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE: Edinburgh MoU 
  
OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
As I mentioned briefly yesterday, the meeting went as expected. For interest, a note 
of the meeting is attached. If there are any further interactions on this on your end, 
please let us know. 
  
Many thanks, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
   
  
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 

Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 12:34 PM 



To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@fcdo.gov.uk] 

Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@fcdo.gov.uk] 

Subject: RE: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE: Edinburgh MoU 
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)], 
  
For info, the Consul General here in Edinburgh has requested a meeting with 
Cabinet Secretary to discuss this matter. Have you had any contact from the 
Embassy? 
  
I’m told by the council the timeline may be pushed, although a motion is still due 26 
or 27. [redacted – s.28(1)]  
  
[redacted-s.30(b)(i)] 
  
We welcome your thoughts. 
  
Many thanks, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@fcdo.gov.uk] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 4, 2024 3:12 AM 
To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE: Edinburgh MoU 
  
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)] 
  



Email correspondence – 16 May 2024:  
 
From:                                                       [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@edinburgh.gov.uk] 
Sent:                                                         16 May 2024 14:08 
To:                                                            [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Cc:                                                             [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Subject:                                                   RE: Briefing for Lord Provost Shenzhen visit 
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)] 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] has just briefed the Lord Provost on the visit and we have briefed on Human 
Rights so maybe just out of time given the impending outbound journey this weekend. 
  
Thank-you for your support. I think a further discussion prior to 26th would be helpful though.  
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Sent: Thursday, May 16, 2024 11:51 AM 
To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@edinburgh.gov.uk] 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: Briefing for Lord Provost Shenzhen visit 
  
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] had one of our regular catch ups with the Chinese Consul 
yesterday. [redacted – s.32(1)(a)]  
  
If helpful, ahead of Lord Provosts visit, I’d be happy to discuss this issue and provide 
briefing. Let me know if that would be of use? 
  
Best wishes, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  



Email correspondence  – 3 June 2024:  
 
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 10:28 AM 
To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@edinburgh.gov.uk] 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: Taiwan MoU catch up 
  
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
I hope you are well. I’m told that the Lord Provost visit was a success. [redacted – 
s.32(1)(a)]  
  
Are you able to suggest some availability for a call, or meeting, in the next couple of 
weeks? If we can schedule something between 9-10:30am it may be useful for 
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] [redacted – s.32(1)(a)]  
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
Best wishes, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  



Email correspondence – 12 June 2024:  
 
 From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 1:54 PM 
To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@tranport.gov.scot] 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: OFF-SEN: China 
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
We are aware of this arrangement that Edinburgh Council are considering, [redacted 
– s.32(1)(a)] Cab Sec met with the Chinese Consul General on this matter this 
morning, at the CG’s request. [redacted – s.33(1)(b)] 
  
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)]  
  
[redacted – s.33(1)(b)] 
  
Thanks, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@transport.gov.scot] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 1:34 PM 
To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: China 
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
[redacted – s.33(1)(b)] 
  
We’ll let you know if we hear anything further and will be guided by you on whether 
this is the sort of thing that we’d normally flag with Ministers.  My view is that we 
probably just sit tight for now… 
  
Thanks 
 



Email correspondence – 13 June 2024:  
 
From:                                                       [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Sent:                                                         13 June 2024 07:54 
To:                                                            [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Cc:                                                             [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Subject:                                                   RE: OFF-SEN: Note of meeting between Cab Sec and Chinese CG 

- 12 Jun 2024 
  
Follow Up Flag:                                      Follow up 
Flag Status:                                             Completed 
  

OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
 
Thanks for this, and quick write-up.  
  
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)] 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)]  
  

OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE 
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 10:27 PM 
To: CabSecCEAC@gov.scot 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@goov.scot] 
Subject: OFF-SEN: Note of meeting between Cab Sec and Chinese CG - 12 Jun 2024 
  
Dear PS, 
  
Thanks again for accommodating a last minute request for a meeting with Consul 
General Zhang Biao. Please find attached a note of the meeting. If Cab Sec is 
content, I will follow up with an erdm link. 
  
Many thanks, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
 
  



Email correspondence – 19 June 2024:  
 
From:                                                       [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Sent:                                                         19 June 2024 12:39 
To:                                                            [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Cc:                                                             [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Subject:                                                   RE: Friendship arrangement with Kaohsiung, Taiwan 
  
Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)]  
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@edinburgh.gov.uk] 
Sent: Friday, June 14, 2024 9:56 AM 
To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: Friendship arrangement with Kaohsiung, Taiwan 
  
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)]  
  
Best regards, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
 
 
 
 
  



Email correspondence – 12 June 2024:  
 
From:                                                       [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Sent:                                                         12 June 2024 10:17 
To:                                                            Cabinet Secretary for Constitution, External Affairs and Culture 

2024 
Cc:                                                             [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Subject:                                                   RE: Urgent - Request for meeting with Chinese Consul General 
Attachments:                                         REVISED Briefing - Cab Sec Meeting with Chinese CG on 

Edinburgh Friendship Agreement 12 Jun 2024.docx 
  
Good morning, 
  
Please find attached a revised briefing for the meeting with Chinese Consul General 
at 11:30. 
  
Changes made; 

• Additional context info 
• [redacted-s.30(b)(i)] 
• [redacted s.32(1)(a)] 

  
Many thanks, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 6:23 PM 
To: Cabinet Secretary for Constitution, External Affairs and Culture 2024 <CabSecCEAC@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: RE: Urgent - Request for meeting with Chinese Consul General 
  
The Consul General has confirmed 11:30 meeting at SAH. 
  
Please find attached a briefing for the meeting. [redacted – s.28] 
  
Best wishes, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot]On Behalf Of Cabinet Secretary for Constitution, External 
Affairs and Culture 2024 
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 4:52 PM 
To: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot]Cabinet Secretary for Constitution, External Affairs and Culture 
2024 <CabSecCEAC@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
Subject: RE: Urgent - Request for meeting with Chinese Consul General 
  



This email is for the official record and confirms a Ministerial Decision. 
This email must be placed in the official record (eRDM) by your team in 
line with SG records management policy. 

Hi [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
Many thanks for this submission.  Mr Robertson has noted and is content to meet the 
Chinese Consul General. 
  
In terms of timing, the only possible window this week is between 11.15 and 13.30 
tomorrow (ideally 11.15, but we can flex if essential within that window).  Otherwise 
we would be looking at Tues/Weds next week onwards. 
  
Please can you advise asap if the window tomorrow is a possibility or not. 
  
Thanks, 
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
  
From: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2024 10:46 AM 
To: Cabinet Secretary for Constitution, External Affairs and Culture 2024 <CabSecCEAC@gov.scot> 
Cc: [redacted -s.38(1)(b)@gov.scot] 
Subject: Urgent - Request for meeting with Chinese Consul General 
  
Good morning PS, 
  
The Chinese Consul General has requested an urgent meeting with the Cabinet 
Secretary regarding a ‘friendship agreement’ between Edinburgh City and Kaohsiung 
in Taiwan. Please find attached advice and recommendations on this meeting 
request. 
  
I would be grateful for a decision on this today. 
  
Many thanks, 
  
[redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
 
 
  



What Meeting with the Consul General, Zhang Biao  

Where St Andrew’s House 

When 11:30 – 12:00, 12 June 2024  

Key Message(s) [redacted – s.32(1)((a)]  

Who Consul General Zhang Biao 

Why The Consul General requested a meeting in relation to the 
City of Edinburgh Council’s intentions to sign a ‘friendship 
agreement’ with Kaohsiung City.  

Supporting 
official  

 [redacted -s.38(1)(b)] 
 

Briefing contents 1. Summary 
2. Sensitivities 
3. Lines to take 
4. Biography 
5. Annex A – draft agreement 

Media Handling Reactive line being prepared. 
 
 

Social Media None.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



[redacted-s.30(b)(i)] 
 
[redacted – s.32(1)(a)] 
 
  



Advice to Cabinet Secretary – 11 June 2024:  
 
[redacted-s.30(b)(i)] 

 

 


